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are extensive quarries of the best marble to 
be found in America, in proof of which the 
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Foreword 
 

As enterprises expanded along the Ottawa Valley of the 1800’s, river junctions were coveted sites. The 
smooth, easily accessible rocks at the Madawaska-Ottawa junction proved an irresistibly welcome landing. 
Geology had made Arnprior. 

The curved, paisley-like patterns in the washed marble at Arnprior record the particular ductile folding that 
made “Arnprior Marble”. Although more difficult to extract, the marble was closer than limestone and softer, 
more easily worked than granite. Marble had made Arnprior’s geoheritage. Sir William Logan, director of the 
Geological Survey of Canada in 1842, wrote: 

Quarry technology of 
hammer, bar, wedges, 
block and tackle, derrick 
and simple sweat was 
augmented by steam-
powered saws and 
polishing tools in nearby 
plants. W. Knowles may 
have used water power to 
run gang saws cutting 
marble from the island at 
the Madawaska bridge. 

A headstone in the 
Craig St. cemetery, Perth, 
with a date of death of 
September 1835 and a signed stone with an 1845 date of death in the Anglican cemetery on Carp Road 
indicate the industry was well underway before Arnprior’s lumber boom and Dan McLachlin’s arrival. The 
stone of choice for cemeteries along routes from Arnprior to the Pontiac, Ottawa, Cornwall, Brockville, Perth 
and Kingston attests to the local reputation of “Arnprior Marble”. By 1859, the quality and artistry from decades 
of monument production was rewarded by contracts for internal columns, fireplace facades, mantles and floor 
tiles for Canada’s first Parliamentary and Departmental Buildings. By 1878 Arnprior Marble was recognized 
with international awards. Although less celebrated than logging, the marble industry bolstered the regional 
economy. Apparently akin to trade issues today, federal duties and production costs facilitated the industry’s 
demise by about 1890. While depleted forests ended Arnprior’s lumber boom, Arnprior did not “run out” of 
marble. 

As the significance of the Arnprior Marble story grew, our efforts to pursue more than we had anticipated 
rose in large measure to the urging of early reviewers including S. Forsyth, Civic Collections, City of Kingston, 
Ontario, J. Carlile, Arnprior and District Museum and L. Dougherty, Arnprior McNab/Braeside Archives. The 
referral to R. Newell’s “Arnprior industry prior to 1900” by volunteers at the Arnprior & McNab/Braeside 
Archives was pivotal. We felt at times both blessed and cursed with the tasks “assigned” by Newell to pursue 
documents that would confirm, clarify and expand her myriad of references to the products, persons, dates, 
locations and events that mark Arnprior’s “Marble Era”. It is likely that artefacts of the Late Victorian marble 
industry in Arnprior remain to be unearthed. 

The study evolved from questions posed while preparing geology tour guides for the Macnamara Field 
Naturalists Club (see: http://www.mfnc.ca/macnamaratrail/geologyfieldguides.html). 

We hope this report may help to recognize both the Arnprior industry and the remnant marble sites as 
heritage locations of both local and national significance. Much may still be done. 

From Logan’s 
“Progress Report” from 

“Commencement” 
(1842) to 1863. The 

“mill ... at Arnprior” had 
“been erected” before 

1863. 

http://www.mfnc.ca/macnamaratrail/geologyfieldguides.html
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Introduction 
 

Beneath recent clays and Ordovician sediments, all of Arnprior is underlain by Precambrian 
marble. The marble is but one feature of the geology that has framed the history of Arnprior. 

During Arnprior’s “Marble Era” from the 1830’s to ~1900, local quarries produced two principal 
types of marble. The dark grey-blue shades and smoothly crenulated internal fabric define “Arnprior 
Marble”. Newspaper reports often referred to it as the “dark Arnprior”. Lighter grey stone with a finer 
fold pattern was designated “Ottawa Valley Marble”. The 1892 Toronto Globe suggests J. (John) 
Watson was planning to market “Madawaska Marble”. The intricately sculpted draped shawls and 
low relief forms on headstones testify to local stonecutter artistry. Framing of the United Church and 
Manse, the hand-hammered quoins of “The Retreat” on Madawaska Blvd., Scotiabank, Campbell 
Block, Craig Block, Arnprior Town Hall and polished columns in the first Parliament buildings 
document the function, durability and beauty of Arnprior Marble. 

A headstone signed by Arnprior marble merchant P.T. Somerville with an 1845 date of death 
indicates Arnprior’s marble industry was established by the 1840s. An unsigned, apparent Arnprior 
Marble stone in the Craig St. Cemetery, Perth, with a date of death of September 1835 suggests the 
industry may date from the 1830’s. The industry boomed with the patronage of Daniel McLachlin and 
the arrival of the Brockville and Ottawa railway in the 1860’s. When the Province of Canada sought 
marble for the first parliament buildings in 1859, the local industry was ready. Marble was a major 
industry when the Municipality of the Village of Arnprior was incorporated in 1862. 

Marble products included highly polished, decorative outdoor and indoor monuments, urns, 
pedestals, columns, chimney pieces, counter and table tops, fireplace mantles and facades, 
baptismal fonts, wash basins, curling whins, hitching posts, tomb and head stones, blocks (quoins), 
lintels, sills, steps and door frames for building construction and columns and floor tiles for the first 
parliament buildings. The Arnprior marble industry is recorded in cemeteries along historic routes 
from Arnprior to the Pontiac, Ottawa, Cornwall, Brockville, Perth and Kingston. 

This report tries to document the features of Arnprior Marble, the quarry sites in Arnprior, the 
people involved in the Arnprior marble industry, their products, the industry’s time frame and the 
significance of the industry’s contribution. Seven historic quarry sites have been clearly identified 
within Arnprior. At least 5 pits at three sites are recognizably intact today. Arnprior’s geological 
heritage was a principal contributor to the settlement’s early industrial history. Today, the marble 
industry appears little known. 
 
Features of Arnprior Marble - How was Arnprior Marble formed? 
 

The special traits 
of Arnprior Marble 
are a product of its 
tectonic history. 
Although details of 
the early life of 
Arnprior Marble are 
sketchy, the rock 
probably began as 
calcium- and 
magnesium-rich 
mud beneath seas 
some 1.5 billion 
years ago along another 
continental margin. 

Same scale comparison between “Arnprior marble” outcrop, Craig Street 
and an unsigned 1892 headstone, Albert Street Cemetery, Arnprior 
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By about 1 billion years ago, plate tectonics had joined the continental fragments containing these 
now transformed sediments into part of a major “Grenville” crustal structure. The muds, mixed with the 
nearby quartz–rich materials, had been buried and transformed – subjected to pressures of about 6-9 
kilobars (or ~ 87000-130,000 psi) and temperatures of between 400 to 800 degrees Celsius – akin to 
depths near 10 km within the Earth’s crust (see, for example, Goodwin-Bell, 2008). The result 
metamorphosed the marine sediments into calcium- and magnesium-rich marbles, a form of carbonate 
rock. Since carbonates deform at lower temperatures and pressures than the other silica-rich 
continental materials, the layered marbles yielded to crustal stresses as a ductile mass (like warmed 
plastic) to produce the complex, intricately crenulated fold patterns that distinguish “Arnprior Marble”. 
Like a finger print, the easily identifiable “dark Arnprior” referred to in historical accounts reflects the 
unique geological conditions at Arnprior. 

Under the same conditions, the non-carbonate, more quartz-rich material or “silicates” - now 
granites, quartzite layers and intruded diabase dykes - remained stiff, cracked under stress and appear 
as rigid blocks created by “brittle” fractures. Like broken raisins in porridge, blocks of angular silicate 
fragments have been offset and drawn apart by the ductile host marble, evident along the Madawaska 
shoreline at Bell Park. Within the “dark Arnprior”, lighter layers of mainly calcium-magnesium-rich 
marble separate darker mineral bands with graphite (carbon) and grey to black, centimetre-scale laths 
of tremolite. Reflective, often rusty, crystals of mica 
and fractures with brass 
coloured pyrite and 

 
 
pods of beautiful light green epidote and diopside 
may be found in the Albert Street cemetery. Other headstones illustrate the lighter “Ottawa Valley” 
and darker “Arnprior Marble”. More of Arnprior’s geology is at: http://www.mfnc.ca/macnamaratrail/ 
geologyfieldguides.html. 

Pods of green epidote 
in 1859 headstone by 
W. Knowles, Albert 

Street Cemetery, may 
also be seen in the 

Scotiabank building. 

Lighter “Ottawa Valley” and darker “Arnprior Marble” Brittle fragments of black diabase drawn 
apart in ductile marble, Bell Park, Arnprior. 

http://www.mfnc.ca/macnamaratrail/%20geologyfieldguides.html
http://www.mfnc.ca/macnamaratrail/%20geologyfieldguides.html
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Marble Sites - Where were the quarries? 
 
Quarry on the 
Island at the “foot of 
the lumber slide” -
William Knowles 

William Knowles 
quarried marble 
from the island 
downstream of the 
Madawaska Bridge 
by at least 1859. 
The letter from W. 
Knowles to Dan 
McLachlin of August 
24,1859 (MU6765, 
Arnprior & McNab/ 
Braeside Archives) 
proposes a 
business plan 
between Knowles 
and Dan McLachlin. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Adapted from 
Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives MU6765 

W. Knowles letter to Dan McLachlin 24 August, 1859 
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An advertisement in the Ottawa Citizen of March 
12 1861, coded November 15, 1859, affirms the 
Ottawa Valley Marble Works was operated by William 
Knowles and supplied marble for the “New Houses of 
Parliament and Departmental Offices”. The role of 
Arnprior Marble in the first parliament buildings is 
detailed in a later section. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The Almonte Gazette, November 8, 1861 (from the 

Woodstock Sentinel, November 1, 1861), describes a 
visitor’s observations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The newspaper report suggests a plant using a water-powered gang saw was used to cut marble 
slabs from blocks quarried on the island. From the date of November 1861, the island quarry was 
operated by W. Knowles who submitted the estimate to provide marble for the Houses of Parliament 
in 1859.  

Right: Ottawa Citizen from March 12, 1861 
(coded November 15, 1859); above: Arnprior 

marble headstone signed by W. Knowles with a 
death date of 1859 in the Albert Street Cemetery, 

Arnprior. A company run by W. Knowles called 
“Ottawa Valley Marble Works” produced “Arnprior 
Marble” in Arnprior, C.W. (Canada West) in 1859. 
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The remnants of the quarry on the island “at the end of the timber slide” (arrow) are evident in a 
1927 air photo. 
Here the 
Madawaska ran 
through a 
series of 
islands. The 
short inter-
island spans 
formed curves 
in the bridge. 
Below the 
bridge, the 
shore reflects 
the lower water 
level prior to 
establishment 
of the Chats 
Falls dam head 
pond. 

 
A quarry scene is composed using a sketch from the Illustrated Atlas of Renfrew County, 1881, 

H. Belden & Co., Toronto, page 46, combined with an image of the island today. The view might 
have been from the 1880’s bridge, the timber slide or upper window of McLachlin’s grist mill. Arrows 
in the following images point to the last holes drilled by workers to split marble blocks from the island 
bedrock. A human height of 5.5’ has been used to scale the images. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Depiction of the island quarry operated by W. Knowles in 1859. 
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Madawaska Island, south side, 
 marble blocks 

A - 1881 Belden Atlas, page 55, 
illustration – Note metre-scale, 

rectangular, probable marble blocks on 
the island. 

 
B - arrows indicate hand drilled faces. 

 
C - possible iron bar artefact. 

 
The crenulated metamorphic fabric 

evident on most island faces may be 
seen in the Arnprior District Museum 

fireplace exhibit. 
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The “Cove of the Ottawa”, ”Russell and Elgin”, the “mill” near the C.P.R. Bridge, “Lot No.2, 15th 
Conc., Township of McNab”,  

The following description by Alexander McDonald identifies quarry sites and marble trade names.  

Alexander MacDonald’s note to the 1890 Report of the Ontario Commission upon the Mineral 
Resources of Ontario and Measures for their Development, pages 82, 83. The note by Arthur S. 

Hardy on page x of the report suggests information may be current only as of May 16, 1888, 
perhaps earlier. Obtained at http://books.google.com/. 
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    Alexander McDonald’s account together with a contemporary Arnprior Chronicle of July 27 1888, 
and a description of “The Old Arnprior Quarry” in a “ravine east of Arnprior” (see below) serve to 
locate a quarry at the “mill” and his two other area quarries. The letter appears written “here at the 
mill”. The July 1888 advertisement places the mill or “Manufactory near the Rail road Bridge”. The 
CPR was the only railway into Arnprior in 1888. One quarry is “at the corner of Russell and Elgin 

streets”. The quarry “on a cove of the Ottawa river” lies “about a mile and a quarter distant in an 
easterly direction”. Another quarry is “about a mile and half from here”. Present-day quarry remnants 
in Bell Park, along the Macnamara Trail and a mill or “Manufactory” and associated quarry at the 
west end of the CPR Bridge fit very well with the directions and distances described. 
 
Cove of the Ottawa 

Provincial descriptions of mineral occurrences provide dimensions and locate the quarry at the 
“Cove of the Ottawa” in Bell Park (see Goudge, Satterly, below). McDonald’s account defines the 
marble from the Bell Park area as “Ottawa Valley Marble” while the stone from the Elgin and Russell 
quarry and “at the mill” is “Arnprior Marble”. From this, we infer that the Elgin and Russell quarry is 
known in advertisements as the “Arnprior Quarry”. 

The “cove of the Ottawa” is described by Goudge, 1938 and Satterly 1944. 
From Goudge, 1938: 

“One of the small marble quarries is on the low point on the east side of the mouth of the 
Madawaska River. It covers an area 150 feet square and has been worked to a depth of 8 feet. 
The rock is a medium-grained, greyish blue, rather hard and compact, faintly striped calcium 
limestone, striking N. 63° W. and dipping southerly at an angle of 60 degrees. Impurities include 
flakes of mica, which in places are present in nodular masses, and also a thin, broken band of 
basic rock.” 

From Satterly, 1944: 
“Concession D, Lot 4 - Two adjoining marble (crystalline limestone) quarries occur on a small 

point on the east side of the mouth of the Madawaska river, half a mile north of No. 17 highway in lot 
4, concession D, McNab township. One quarry is 150 feet square and 6 feet deep; the other is 120   

Quarries located from A.R. McDonald’s letter 
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feet square and from 5 to 10 feet deep. Both quarries face south. The rock exposed is a light- and 
dark-grey, medium-grained, banded crystalline limestone striking N. 750 W. and dipping 600 S.” 

Today, at the “Cove of the Ottawa” the ends of the eastern pit are evident and the entire western 
pit appears largely intact within Bell Park. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In July 2018, residential excavations revealed the west and north walls of the eastern pit. 

  

In airphotos: a – taken 
from Arnprior’s 150th 

anniversary Facebook 
page and b – from 

NAPL HA515-006 Sept. 
8 1927, arrows show 
the scars left by two 

“Ottawa Valley Marble” 
quarries within and 

beside Bell Park. The 
Mills suggest the image 

in a is before 1930 
when high water levels 
behind the Chats Falls 

dam raised the 
shoreline. 

The west pit is intact 
today. 

east pit 

west pit 

West and north walls of R. McDonald & Son’s eastern pit at the “Cove of the Ottawa” quarry 
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Russell and Elgin 
National Airphoto Library images - Left - HA515-006 Sept 8 1927 and Right - HA525-051 Nov. 9 

1927, illustrate quarry sites on the island and at Russell and Elgin near the Elgin Street Bridge. The 
bare lots at the corner of Elgin and Russell in 1927 are possible quarry sites referred to by Alex 
McDonald. Alexander MacDonald’s 1890 note includes “25 h.p. boiler and engine” indicating they 
used steam to power gang saws in the “mill”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
“Ravine east of Arnprior” - Indenture for “Lot No.2, 15th Conc., Township of McNab” 

A July 22, 1883 indenture at the Arnprior & McNab Braeside/Archives between James Eckford 
and R. McDonald & Son defines the terms and payments to mine marble from the quarry along 
today’s Macnamara Trail. Page 2 of the indenture specifies that the cost of quarrying marble is to be 
measured as “every load drawn by two horses”. Marble properties were not always owned by marble 
merchants. 
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Cover and page 
excerpts adapted from 

the July 22, 1883 
indenture defining the 

agreement for the 
marble mined along 
today’s Macnamara 

Trail. 
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The 1912 Report on the Building and Ornamental Stones of Canada, pg. 333, by Wm. A. Parks 
states:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Parks’ description of “The Old Arnprior Quarry” agrees with the location and structural 

features within quarry remnants located along the Macnamara Trail today. Marble blocks were 
crudely squared before transport to the mills. A remnant pile of marble chips and fragments with drill 
holes remain at a Macnamara Trail quarry edge today. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R. McDonald & Son may have been more of a wholesale marble dealer after selling “Arnprior 
Granite Works” in 1888. 

R. MacDonald & Son marble quarries - the “ravine east of Arnprior” on lot 2, 15th Concession, 
Township of McNab. Above – Left: drill hole with 8.3 cm jackknife; Right - quarry wall; inset – block 

with hand-drilled holes ~ every 6 inches (5 cm scale marks on walking staff). The site includes a 
remnant chip pile from roughly dressed blocks at the quarry. 
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Mill and Shop Sites: Marble Finishing and Technology 
 
48 Hugh Street – “South Hugh Street” the first C.P.R. Station 

Different marble merchants successively occupied 48 Hugh Street. As perhaps the last, Alex 
McDonald’s letter together with the Chronicle advertisement of July 1888 indicates a “Manufactory” 
near the (C.P.) Rail road Bridge and a “Workshop and show room on South Hugh Street near the 
C.P.R. Station.” The “South Hugh street” property (black arrow below) was sold by Patrick 
McGonigal to P.T. Somerville on August 31, 1871 (Arnprior Land Records, Arnprior Book. No.1, pg. 
163, Arnprior & McNab/ Braeside Archives). Arnprior Land Records indicate the 48 Hugh Street 
property was sold by P.T. Somerville to T.J. Somerville on August 13, 1884 and by T.J. Somerville to 
John G. Watson on December 17, 1887. 

Overlaying part of the 1865 “Plan Of The McGonigal Estate” (Arnprior & McNab/Braeside 
Archives, in red) on National Airphoto Library image HA515-007 from September 8, 1927, shows that 

 
the original Brockville and Ottawa Railway station occupied the same site as the later Canadian 
Pacific Railway freight shed. Together the evidence indicates the illustration of P.T. Somerville’s 
“ARNPRIOR MARBLE WORKS” in Belden’s 1881 atlas of Renfrew County (below) is based on a 
photograph (Arnprior District Museum) taken after 1871, looking southwest from just north of the 
Somerville store and plant at 48 Hugh Street. The building corner with an extended soffit in the left 
background appears to be the west end of the 1865 B&O station and on June 9, 1881, Arnprior’s first 
C.P.R. station. See Tracing The Lines, Eastern Ontario & West Québec Railway History in Maps by 
B. Gilhuly, Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives. 
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Truth and advertising: comparison of restored photograph from the Arnprior District Museum a, 
with b, a sketch from the Illustrated Atlas of Renfrew County, 1881, H. Belden & Co., page 46. 

The upper floor was advertised as a “Hall” for rent by Peter Somerville in 1876. 
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The November 29, 1878 edition of the Almonte Gazette described the P.T. Somerville’s steam-
powered operations as: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Almonte Gazette, Volume XII, No.8, November 29, 1878 
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48 Hugh Street –P.T. Somerville to J.G. Watson, by 1887 
The 1894 Arnprior Watchman article indicates the business “Known as the Arnprior Marble 

Works”, was “Established in 1861. The Arnprior Review and South Renfrew Chronicle ad shows that 
Peter Taylor Somerville had a “Hall” over the 48 Hugh Street shop in 1876. By June 1894 the 
“property on South Hugh Street”, now owned by J.G. Watson, included “four comfortable tenements”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
His plant and shop on Elgin Street included a 20 hp engine, 12 hp boiler, 10 hp engine, 3 turning 
lathes, a saw, a polisher and a quantity of marble. Steam technology is evident. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The sale by J.G. Watson in 1894 
appears to mark the end of a marble 
business at 48 south Hugh Street that 
began with P.T. Somerville’s purchase 
of the property from Patrick McGonigal 
in September 1871. A Carp Road 
headstone date suggests P.T. 
Somerville had already been in the 
marble business in 1845. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1894 Arnprior Watchman 
newspaper fragment (Arnprior 
& McNab/Braeside Archives) 

Peter Taylor Somerville advertisement 
for “Hall to Let!” in the Arnprior Review 
and South Renfrew Chronicle, October 

6 1876, page 3 (Arnprior & 
McNab/Braeside Archives). 

J.G. Watson, Marble cutter. The 
Saturday Globe, October 1, 1892. 
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“South side of the Madawaska” River  
Alexander McDonald’s 1890 letter and the 1885 Annual Report of the Bureau of Industries for the 

Province of Ontario together indicate a “mill for the manufacture of the stone” owned by 
Farquhar(son), McLachlin and Hartney about 1869-1874 on the “south side of the Madawaska”. The 
Arnprior Review and South Renfrew Chronicle of October 6 1876, page 3 (Arnprior & McNab/ 
Braeside Archives) reported an Arnprior Marble exhibit by “Messrs. Wright & Farquharson”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The exact date, the relationship between Wright & Farquharson or Farquhar, McLachlin and 

Hartney, and the precise mill location “south side of the Madawaska” are not yet clear. A site near  

 
the quarry remnants in present day Bell Park is possible. Alternatively, Arnprior &McNab/Braeside 
Archives map 2004-0168-M024_1882c indicates an “old quarry” in the area of Elgin street as it 
extended south of the Madawaska. Due to delays in printing, the 1885 account derives from 
information a year or more earlier. Nominally the Farquhar, McLachlin, Hartney & Co. mill “for the 
manufacture of stone” might date from 1885 – 16 = 1869. This conflicts with McDonald’s 1890 letter 
that could indicate ~1878 – 4 = 1874. The 1885 report indicates a “35 horse-power” engine while 
McDonald’s letter describes a “25 h.p. boiler and engine”. 

The report in the November 22, 1878 edition of the Almonte Gazette supports Claude McLachlin, 
as a partner with Messrs. Farquhar and Hartney in Arnprior’s marble industry. 

 
 
 

 
 

No additional details of Claude McLachlin’s “marble interest” have been found.  

Almonte Gazette, 
November 22, 1878 

The firm of Wright and 
Farquharson produced 

an Arnprior Marble 
monument for the 

“Central Exhibition” at 
Port Hope in 1876. 
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John Street – Spence & Co., Watson and Danlin 
Fuller's Counties of Leeds, Grenville, Lanark 

and Renfrew Directory for 1866 and 1867, listing 
page 120, places “SPENCE & CO.” on “John st”. 
The “John st” site of Spence & Co. in 1866-67 is 
uncertain. The Arnprior Chronicle of March 28, 
1890 indicates J.G. Watson & W.B. Danlin had 
“moved to Stafford’s Factory” suggesting a John 
Street site just north of the Arnprior District 
Museum today.  
 
Elgin Street - Transition from Wm Spence to T. J. Somerville to John L. Fraser – Dominion Marble 
Works - New Granite and Marble Works - Central Marble Works 1885, 1888 –1890 

Elgin Street sites, 
beside or opposite 
the Post Office (now 
Shoppers Drugs), 
were also re-occupied 
marble stores. 
Arnprior Chronicle 
advertisements of 
1885, 1888 and 1890 
show T.J. Somerville 
had taken over Wm 
Spence’s Dominion 
Marble Works and 
J.L. Fraser was 
employed by T.J. 
Somerville as a 
manager for “New 
Granite and Marble Works” in 1885. As owner 
of the Central Marble Works by 1888, John L.  

 
Fraser changed his 1888 location from “Shop Opposite the Post Office”, on the south side of Elgin 
Street, to “next to R.S. Drysdale’s” by 1890. In fact, the April 30, 1926 Arnprior Chronicle indicates 
the “Central Marble Works” had been established on the north side of Elgin Street adjacent to R.S. 
Drysdale, in 1888. Clearly, both Elgin Street west of John Street, and 48 Hugh Street (near the 
present Town Centre) were principal sites for marble retail outlets and finishing plants. 
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The merchant history adjacent to Elgin Street marble businesses is documented in several 
Arnprior Chronicle issues or images at the Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives and Arnprior District 
Museum. The image described in the Arnprior Chronicle, April 30, page 3, shows J.L. Fraser’s 1888  

 
Central Marble Works and a building shadow to the east. The building to the east (image from 
Lavoie, 1984, page 127) is the post office described in the advertisements by T.J. Somerville and 
J.L. Fraser above. The post office image also appears to show fire debris probably left from the fire 
Saturday, June 30, 1928 described in the July 6, 1928 Arnprior Chronicle (Arnprior & McNab/ 
Braeside Archives). 

Air photos from 1927 and 1949 illustrate the building locations on Elgin Street. A indicates the 
south side marble shop location of T. Somerville and J.L. Fraser before 1888, B is the post office and 
C is the location of J.L. Fraser’s central marble Works. C’ shows the building was shortened when 
reconstructed after the fire in 1928. Shoppers Drug Mart now occupies sites B and C. 
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Arnprior Marble Quarry, Plant and Shop Site Summary 
At least seven quarries lay within Arnprior’s town limits today. Documentation for the “cove of the 

Ottawa” at Bell Park, the island adjacent to the Madawaska Bridge, Russell and Elgin and near the 
C.P.R. Bridge is reasonably clear. The 1883 indenture between James Eckford and R. McDonald 
and Son identifies the quarry site along the Macnamara trail, as the “ravine east of Arnprior”. 

Sites of historic marble 
quarries and suggested 

plants and retail outlets in 
present day Arnprior. 
During the1800s, the 

Village of Arnprior lay west 
of the Madawaska River 
and addresses had no 

street numbers. 
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Arnprior Marble craftsmen and Products – Who were they? What did they make? 
 

Marble Craftsmen 
Craftsmen from 1845 to 1897 are listed from reports, advertisements and signed headstones. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The list of marble industry merchants and craftsmen includes William Knowles, Danlin (“J.G. 

Watson & W. B. Danlin”, Arnprior Chronicle, 1890, Watson & Danlin headstones), J.L. Fraser, Wm 
Niblett, R. Niblett, Robert McDonald, Alex McDonald, J.W. McDonald, W.G. Smart, Hugh McEwen, 
Finley Spence, William Spence, R.G. Spence, T. Spence, Peter Taylor Somerville, T.G. Somerville, 
Thomas James Somerville, J.G. Watson, A. Taylor, Farquhar, McLachlin, Hartney& Co., Wright & 
Farquharson and Spence & Firth. 

Arnprior marble industry advertisements 
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There were probably more craftsmen and marble firms than available data can verify. For 
example, a newspaper from 1876 indicates the East End Marble Works was an Arnprior firm. No 
additional evidence of this company has been found. 

 

 
 
 

The Arnprior marble craftsmen signed their stones in a variety of fonts. 

 
 

In the late 1860s, the 1936 Arnprior Curling Club Constitution and Bylaws states: “curlers used 
whins, some of which were made from Arnprior marble “. Products also included monuments, urns, 
pedestals, columns, fireplace faces and mantles, chimney caps and pieces, counter and table tops, 
baptismal fonts, basins, tomb and head stones, equestrian hitching blocks, floor tiles and 
construction stones (quoins, lintels, sills, door frames) for buildings.  

A sample of headstone signatures from Arnprior area cemeteries 

Arnprior Review and South Renfrew 
Chronicle, October 6, 1876, page 3. 

(Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives) 
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William Knowles – Egan Monument – 1860 Visit of the Prince of Wales 
The earliest discovered Arnprior marble merchants include Peter Taylor Somerville, Spence & 

Firth and William Knowles. All were very 
active in exhibiting Arnprior Marble 
products at Provincial and international 
exhibitions. McLachlin Family Letters at 
the Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives 
suggest the success of W. Knowles was 
partly due to the financial support and 
patronage of Dan McLachlin. The letter 
addressed to Dan McLachlin from J. 
Doyle dated October,11, 1858, includes 
a request to supply Arnprior Marble for 
the monument to John Egan, Aylmer’s 
first mayor. The letter of August 24,1859 
(noted in the section on Marble Sites - 
Where were the quarries?) indicates 
William Knowles leased the island north 
of the Madawaska bridge from Dan 
McLachlin to quarry marble and that 
Knowles was working on “an order for 
the amount on the Egan Monument 
Committee.” 

 
 
 
 

 
The name of James Doyle in the list of pall-bearers links the October 1858 letter to Dan McLachlin, 

W. Knowles and the Egan monument committee. The committee was serious. Stent and Laver, the 
Ottawa architect firm involved in designing the first Houses of Parliament, was contracted to design 
the Egan monument in 1859. (Bio-graphical Dictionary of Architects in Canada 1800-1950). 
  

Adapted from 
Arnprior & McNab/Braeside 

  

Letter from J. Doyle to Dan McLachlin requesting 
Arnprior Marble for the Egan Monument 

(MU6765. Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives). 

John Egan funeral, Ottawa 
Citizen, 18th July, 1857. Pall-

bearers included James Doyle. 
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Details of the Egan monument are laid out in the Ottawa Citizen of September 29 1860. 
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The Egan monument was a sculptural tour de force for Aylmer and Arnprior Marble. John Egan’s 
gravesite beside his mansion in Aylmer was later deconsecrated and he was re-interred in 
Beechwood Cemetery, Ottawa, with family members on June 3, 1903 (Beechwood Cemetery file). 
The Beechwood Egan family site is now marked with a large granite headstone. Where is John 
Egan’s original monument?  

Egan Monument, Library and Archives Canada, Canadian Illustrated News, September 7, 
1878, page 152. Annotation from description in the September 29, 1860, Ottawa Citizen.  

Egan Monument 
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At about the same time, William Knowles also received awards (described later) for Arnprior 
Marble products at the Exhibition of the Provincial Agricultural Association of Upper Canada, in 
Kingston, on September 27-30,1859. The awards, coupled with the growing awareness of Arnprior 
Marble are contemporary with the estimate by William Knowles to provide Arnprior Marble for use in 
Canada’s first parliament buildings in September 1859 (See later section on Arnprior Marble in the 
First Parliament Buildings.) 

 
1860 Visit of the Prince of Wales  

The next year, the opportunity presented by the visit of the Prince of Wales to Canada in 1860 
was not missed. The letter of July 25, 1860 from William Knowles requests support from Dan  

 
McLachlin for the exhibition in Montreal to accompany the visit. This was before the railway reached 
Arnprior in 1864. The account of the Prince’s visit in the Toronto Globe of August 29, 1860 notes: 
 

Adapted from 
Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives MU6765 
Knowles letter to Dan McLachlin July 25, 1860  

Erroneous description from Toronto 
Globe, August 29,1860. 

There was no marble within Ottawa’s 
boundary of the 1860s. The “square 

block of the same kind” by W. 
Knowles means the baptismal font, 

chimney piece and block are actually 
made of the “dark Arnprior” (not 

“dark Ottawa”) marble. 
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The Spence Family 
The Spence family name was associated with Arnprior’s marble industry for at least 3 

decades. A headstone in Arnprior’s Albert Street Cemetery with a date of 1854 is signed “Spence & 
Firth”. Kingston’s Cataraqui Cemetery stone 
with a date of 1864 signed “F. Spence” 
indicates Finley Spence was producing 
Arnprior Marble products in 1864. The Toronto 
Globe’s report on the Provincial Exhibition in 
London Ontario of September 20, 1865, 
attests to production of Arnprior Marble 
products by T. Spence. 

From the advertisement and listing in 
“Fuller’s Counties of Leeds, Grenville, Lanark 
and Renfrew Directory for 1866 and 1867”, 
page 116, the Spence firm is now “Spence & 
Co.”. Neilson’s Weekly, May 29,1869, Vol. II, No. 
22 carries “F. Spence, Marble Manufacturer”. The 
Arnprior Weekly Review July 3,1874 shows that 
following Confederation, the company is called 
“Dominion Marble Works” and imported marble is 
being marketed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Part of column from: The Provincial Exhibition: 
Preparations for the Fair Grounds and …The 
Globe (1844-1936); Sep 20, 1865; ProQuest 

Historical Newspapers: The Globe and Mail, pg. 1 
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A transition in the family  

ownership appears by the 
change from Dominion Marble 
Works under F. Spence in the 
February 16, 1877, edition of 
the Arnprior Review and 
South Renfrew Chronicle, to 
Wm. Spence in the July 
3,1885 edition of the Arnprior 
Chronicle. As noted in the 
previous discussion of the 
Elgin Street site, the July 3, 
1885 Arnprior Chronicle also 
noted the end of the Spence 
family connection with the 
Arnprior Marble industry in the 
advertisement that noted that 
T.J. Somerville “has opened a 
branch shop in Spence’s Old 
Stand opposite the new Post 
Office, Elgin st.”. 
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The Somervilles 
The Somerville name is prominent in Arnprior’s marble industry. Peter Taylor Somerville’s name 

appears as a signature on an early headstone with a date of 1845 as well as on the image of 
“Arnprior Marble Works” at 48 Hugh Street. The 1891 Canadian Album describes T. J. Somerville. 

The headstone supports T.J. Somerville’s time in Arnprior and the 1891 “Men of Canada” article. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T.J. Somerville advertisement, Arnprior 
Chronicle, December 14, 1888. R. 
McDonald & Son’s Arnprior Granite 
Works passed to T.J. Somerville “on 

the 1st of October” 1888. Note the 
same central graphic appears in the 
1888-1890 advertisements of J.L. 

Fraser. The Chronicle advertisement of 
July 3 1885 indicates Fraser worked 
for T.J. Somerville before taking over 

in about 1888. 
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R. MacDonald and Son 
The R. McDonald & Son business began when Robert McDonald, stone cutter, purchased a 

quarry after 1866-7 from J.S. Bellamy. The Bellamy quarry site is unknown. Following the death of R. 
McDonald on August 12, 1884, the business passed to sons Robert and Alex (Ontario Gazetteer and 
Business Directory 1895, pg 89). The 4 quarries operated are described in the Marble Sites section. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 20 of the Mercantile 
Agency Reference Book 

1866, lists “Bellamy, J. S. & 
Co.” as Tinsmith in Arnprior. 
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The Cemetery Market - local head and tombstones, Albert Street Cemetery, Arnprior 
Headstones were probably 

responsible for the beginning and 
became the mainstay of Arnprior’s 
stone industry. Arnprior marble was 
used to fashion many early head 
and tomb stones in sections A, B, D 
and E of the Albert Street cemetery. 
Early stones were also fashioned 
from sandstone, limestone and 
marble brought to Arnprior. Granite 
and other silicate stone appear 
somewhat later. 

A map of the local marble 
stones in the Albert Street cemetery 
has been prepared using the 
cemetery plan obtained courtesy of 
the Arnprior Municipal Office, as a 
base. A nominal rectangular symbol 
was chosen based on the individual 
plot size in sections D and E. 
Symbols are oriented following the 
plots on the base plan. 

More marble stones from local 
quarries are located in the older 
section A than in the other sections. 
Locations overlooking the 
Madawaska River were clearly 
preferred. As the local marble 
industry faded, a decreasing 
number of local marble stones 
followed in sections B and E. 

A few headstones appear to 
have been restored using granite 
parts. More simply fashioned, local 
marble grave markers may have 
been fashioned from “left over” 
stone after the end of Arnprior’s 
“Marble Era” about 1900. 

Albert Street 
Cemetery Plan 



ARNPRIOR MARBLE                                   Update May 14, 2021                                           Dave & Mary Forsyth 

 32 

The Tombstone Trails of Arnprior Marble and a link to the War of 1812  
Many Arnprior Marble headstones are found in cemeteries dating to Arnprior’s Marble Era along 

routes from Arnprior to Beechwood Cemetery, Ottawa, and along the corridors from Arnprior to Perth 
and Kingston. Other cemeteries across Ontario and beyond probably contain Arnprior Marble stones. 

A poignant link to the War of 1812 lies a few kilometres east of Phillipsville. Here a superb slab of 
Arnprior marble records the passing of a soldier from the War of 1812. The flame-like fold structure in 
the pedestal base so closely resembles the structure in the Claude Street outcrop (page 5) that the 
stone may be from the quarry of R. McDonald & Son at the corner of Russell and Elgin streets. The 
date of May 31, 1869 indicates the stone was produced ~3 years after R. McDonald arrived in 
Arnprior having finished work on the first Parliament buildings. 
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Cemeteries from Arnprior to Ottawa, Kingston, and Cornwall feature Arnprior Marble headstones. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Modular construction of turned top monuments, columns or rectangular midsections and 
pedestal base components made shipping easier. Components could be assembled on site with 
central iron bars fixing the parts. Lettering might be done later by local craftsmen. 

   A - Maple Vale Cemetery, Hwy 29 south of Smiths Falls. 
   B -  Presbyterian Cemetery, Carp Road 
   C - Crosby Cemetery, Hwy 15 
   D - Bright orange lichens follow folded mineral trends in  
       Arnprior Marble at Pine Grove Cemetery north of Kingston. 
   E - Low relief sculpture, headstone column, 3008 Carp Road 

 B C 

D 

E 

A 
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Cataraqui Cemetery, Kingston, Ontario 
The crenulated structure and blue-grey shades of Arnprior Marble distinguish many 

impressive stones in Cataraqui Cemetery. Larger stone components have been shipped from 
Arnprior and lettered by Kingston area craftsmen. Several headstones closely match Arnprior 
Marble models advertised in the 1869-1883 Canadian Illustrated News (inset). The west side of 
the pedestal beneath one smaller stone, apparently finished and shipped from Arnprior, is signed 
“F. (Finley) Spence Arnprior”. This stone is notable for the use of some 6 different fonts 
strategically and skillfully carved to within millimeters of the monument’s edge. The delicate 
carving has not led to fracture of the edges even after some 150 years of weathering. 
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Arnprior Marble – Craftmanship - Sculpture 
Some of the best examples of Arnprior marble sculpture survive in fireplace mantles at “The Hill”, 

in the Arnprior District Museum and on headstones from Arnprior to Ottawa and Kingston. 

Examples of sculpture 
in Arnprior Marble. 
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Architectural use of Arnprior Marble 
 

Arnprior buildings: 
Although within Arnprior, marble was 

harder to extract and form into blocks than 
the naturally layered dolomitic limestone. The 
limestone was easier to fashion but had to be 
carried farther. Marble was therefore used 
strategically for chimney caps, keystone door 
and window lintels, entrance pillars, sills and 
thresholds, building corners (quoins and 
buttresses) as well as interior elements (floor 
tiles and fireplaces). Limestone filled the 
walls. 

The original appearance of buildings was quite different than today. Some 150 years of 
weathering has oxidized iron in the dolostone sediment structure to produce rusty shades of orange 
to brown. Marble faces have changed colour from original dark grey-blue shades to lighter beige, 
although glimpses of colour are still evident under the weathered surface. Close examination will 
reveal crystals of dark grey to black laths of tremolite and pods of bright green diopside or epidote. 
Originally reflection and refraction from the marble’s unweathered crystal structure would respond 
variably to the light and light angle to contrast with the dolostone. The changing exposure from soffit 
to street or ground level has also affected weathering. Marble blocks near the foundation of the 
Scotiabank and the Campbell block pillars provide a glimpse of the original marble with darker folded 
bands that clearly distinguish the marble from the horizontally layered dolostone.  

 
“The Hill” - Galilee Centre – by 1857 

Daniel McLachlin’s home at 398 John Street north used sculptured forms for marble chimneys a  

 
 
and precisely sawn and beveled blocks of local marble with no edge decoration for window sills and 
quoins c. Marble quoins and keystone lintel frames the front door in b. An impressive block of 
Arnprior marble of over a square meter forms the entrance threshold. 

Limestone weathers from greys to browns. 

Corners a and b entrance at “The Hill” are framed with Arnprior Marble 
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Arnprior Village Hall – 1862? to April 2, 1888 
Arnprior Village Hall appears on Arnprior’s 1863 business directory map at the northwest corner 

of Victoria and Bell (then Hugh) streets. We assume it was constructed in time for Arnprior’s 
incorporation as a village in 1862. With the new school and church on Ottawa street a block to the 
north, a post office a few doors to the south on Hugh Street, a railway near the southern limit of the 
McLachlin property and the mills to the southeast, the village hall was effectively at the centre of Dan  

 
Mclachlin’s Arnprior. Illustrations from the 1878 Canadian Illustrated News and a photograph taken 
from the roof of Daniel McLachlin’s house in 1870 suggest the first Village Hall at the “Market 
Square” corner of Victoria and Hugh streets was constructed of limestone block walls accentuated by 
more reflective marble corner quoins, window sills and arched lintels. 
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Using the corner quoins for scale, the Village Hall would have been a little larger than today’s 
Craig Block. The keystone marble arched lintels above the upper windows are similar to the style of 
the Scotiabank windows. Chimney caps and slightly arched keystone lintels of the lower windows in 
the 1860’s Village Hall resemble features of the Craig and Campbell blocks today. 

Arnprior’s first 
Village Hall, 

probably built by 
1862, may have 

been slightly 
larger than the 
Craig Block. 
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Arnprior’s Town Hall - 1888 
The meticulous report of the design, construction and personnel involved in the new town hall 

(Dec. 14, 1888 Arnprior Chronicle, Holiday Edition) oddly omits the source of the “light colored 
Arnprior marble”. Beckwith Stone from just south of Carleton Place was used as a brick stop. 

 
 
 
 

Tapered, hand-hammered edges of Arnprior marble quoins frame the base of the present 
municipal building built in 1888. Some quoins retain holes drilled to split the marble and several faces 
appear to be reworked. The almost white marble elements probably came from quarries near 
Portage du Fort. The white marble 
was saved for window sills, the 
date stone originally below top floor 
windows in the clock tower and an 
enigmatic stone set in the base of 
the brickwork on the north side. 
Was this stone intended to carry a 
commemorative engraving? 

 
224 Harriet – 1888? 

The brick-sided house at 224 
Harriet Street features Arnprior 
marble quoins and brick stop sills. 
Sawn marble blocks top corner 
quoins at the soffit and diagonal 
chipping suggests quoins may 
have been refaced. The brick stop 
appears to be large edge-
hammered marble blocks cut lengthwise. Were the refaced quoins and cut brick stop blocks re-used 
after demolition of a previous stone building? Since the house is older than the 1995 demolition of 

Arnprior Town Hall 1888. a - architect’s plan; b – coloured photograph from virtualmuseum.ca of 
clock tower with date stone; c – blank, white (Portage du Fort?) marble block; d – refaced? marble 

quoins; red arrows – site of blank block of white marble in north side brickwork 
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the Tierney Block, the demolished building with marble was most likely Arnprior’s first Village Hall 
originally located less than 100 meters to the east. In this case, stones from Arnprior’s first Village 
Hall may still be seen today. It would also mean that 224 Harriet was built after the April 2, 1888 
Village Hall fire. Arnprior’s 1863 Business Directory map suggests a Nathan Shipper; “brick-yard” 
may have occupied the Harriet Street site. The similarity between the diagonally chipped stones at 
224 Harriet and quoin blocks in the base of the present town hall and the rapid construction of the 
new town hall leads us to suspect that Village Hall stone was recycled and remains today as the 
base of the 1888 Town Hall at Madawaska and Elgin. 
 
More original Arnprior Village Hall stones may be found … 

Recent landscaping at the reported original home of Daniel McLachlin (Hessel, 1988, 118) 
unearthed a marble corner quoin. Like the stones at 224 Harriet, the quoin is along the route from the 
original Arnprior Village Hall at the corner of Victoria and Hugh (Bell) streets to the present Arnprior 
Town hall.  
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Grace St. Andrew’s United Church Manse, 24 Ottawa Street – 1871-1872 
The 1863 map of Arnprior indicates a building close to the present Manse. The Grace-St. 

Andrew’s United Church 1840-1990 centennial booklet reports the current manse dates from 1864. 
The apparent absence of the Manse in the foldout photograph in the same booklet suggests a post-
1870 date. A photograph in the Arnprior District Museum suggests the present stone Manse existed 
by 1873 indicating construction in 1871-1872. Records of the “Kirk Session Arnprior” on January 11, 
1863 (Arnprior & McNab Braeside/Archives) indicate “session met in the Manse.” This would suggest 
a Presbyterian Manse existed by at least 1862. The location of the earlier Presbyterian Manse is 
unknown. 

Marble elements of the United Church Manse include: a – sawn, hammered surface and bevelled 
edge corner quoins, b - chimney caps, c - simple bevelled keystone door and d - window lintels. 
These contrast with the decorated keystone lintels used in the Campbell Block and Robertson-Gillies 
house that were also v-jointed to portray more stones. 

 
 

Above: Marble elements of the 
present United Church Manse. 
Left: 1859 Presbyterian Church 
and Manse - adapted from image 
dated 1873 (Arnprior District 
Museum). Note the front of the 
original Manse had a full porch 
and a small dormer window above 
the front entrance. 
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Tierney Block – 1865 
The date stone (in the Arnprior & District Museum) and Arnprior Chronicle advertisements 

indicate the business run by ‘John Tierney and Sons’ was established in 1865. The structure was an 
example of brick and Arnprior marble construction with an angled soffit and entrance matching those 
of the Scotiabank and museum facing the intersection of John and Madawaska streets. 

  

The evolution of the Tierney Block from 
1865 to 1938. Date stone in the Arnprior 
& District Museum. Original angle marble 

quoins and entrance elements were 
returned to Arnprior in October 2017. 
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“The Retreat’ - 451 Madawaska blvd - 1866 
Family records (courtesy K. Gillies) indicate the house was commissioned by Mr. Neil Robertson 

and constructed by 1866. The Gillies family have been caring for the house since 1953.The present  

 
 
 
building evolved in stages with the north part added later. As a percentage of the stone used, local 
marble probably makes up a greater portion of the Retreat structure than any other Arnprior 
residence. Unlike other buildings, marble has been used on all sides of the structure rather than only 
the “most-viewed” sides. Besides marble keystone lintels and sills on doors and windows, a marble 
sill plate supports the dolostone walls on all sides. Family records indicate the dolostone comes from 
the remnant quarry to the north across Madawaska Blvd.

“The Retreat” at 451 Madawaska Blvd. a) keystone window lintel, b) dressed, edged, 
bevelled quoins, c) a marble sill supports dolostone walls, d) marble hitching block 
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Craig Block, 146 John Street - 1870’s? 
The Town of Arnprior Downtown Heritage Conservation District Study indicates the Craig Block at 

146 John Street was built between 1873 and 1887 (Arnprior & McNab Braeside Archives records). 

 
In the Craig Block images a, the brown sandy dolostone called Beckwith Stone from a few km 

south of Carleton Place was used to make keystone door and window lintels b, as well as basal 
chimney pieces c. Marble was used in chimney caps c, and for hand-hammered corner quoins d. 
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Campbell Block – post 1863? 
The Campbell Block is an Arnprior stonework demonstration project. While Hessel (1988, pg 117) 

dates the structure to 1853, the Town of Arnprior Downtown Heritage Conservation District Study 
indicates between 1864 and 1892. The building is not on Arnprior’s 1863 business directory map. 

 
 

In addition to quoins much like Grace-St. Andrew’s manse, the front on Madawaska Street 
features perhaps the largest surviving pillars a) of Arnprior Marble. The pillars, cap stones and 
underlying pedestal blocks are analogous to the entrance of the earlier Tierney Block across the 
street. The sides facing the streets also included decorated arched keystone lintels to windows and 
the central door b), while the other sides used a simpler limestone lintel c). Hammer-edged, bevelled 
quoins with street names Madawaska St and John St are carved into a simpler faced corner quoin 
d). Limestone from different strata, perhaps different quarries, are used on the sides not directly 
viewed from the streets. The intricate chimneys featured vertical limestone supports for the marble 
chimney caps and carefully cut marble corner blocks in quoin style e).   

The Campbell Block features impressive street-side marble elements. 
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Scotiabank – 1870s? 
 Although home to the Bank of Ottawa, established in 1874, we are not aware of documents 

dating construction of the building at Madawaska and John streets to 1874. 
Sawn blocks of lighter, grey-blue, Arnprior marble decorated with hammered edges frame the  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 
walls, windows and doors (a and c) of the Scotiabank, John Street, Arnprior. A successful attempt 
has been made at matching the deformation fabric “grain” at the north corner (d). A remnant quarry 
hole appears at the edge of a block with flecks of grey-black laths (b) of probable tremolite. 
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Grace-St. Andrew’s United Church – 1890 
Perhaps the latest structure built with Arnprior marble is Grace-St. Andrew’s United Church. Both 

finely cut and more roughly fashioned blocks frame much of the Church at 269 John Street North. 

 
 
 
 

 

The crenulated ductile fold structures identify Arnprior Marble in sawn buttress caps (a and b) and 
window sills (c). More precisely hand-dressed marble frames the adjacent manse built about 28 
years before. The layered, rusty weathered wall stone is dolostone, probably from local quarries. 
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Brick buildings with Arnprior Marble; 67-71 Madawaska; 122-126 Daniel St. 
Local marble elements may also be found in local professional brick buildings and residences. 

Like the Tierney Block, the structure housing 67-71 Madawaska Street was constructed as a brick 
building (not brick-sided) with marble components. Arnprior marble may be seen as a foundation 
brick stop, window sills on both first and second story windows, entrance thresholds and pedestal 
blocks to pillars framing the entrance at 71 Madawaska. Arnprior land records show the 63’X100’ lot, 

likely with a building, was purchased by George Craig, baker, on July 8, 1873. Advertisement from 
December 14, 1888 Chronicle. A 1918 Arnprior Museum postcard shows an awning at the bakery 
and a horse collar at the adjacent entrance of the harness shop. 

122-126 Daniel Street, similar to 67 Madawaska, features arched second floor windows and 
Arnprior Marble window sills and door threshold. The structure appears slightly modified from the 
original that housed the “J.H. McKerracher, Harness Maker” 
shop in 1875. 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Above: Arnprior Marble 
window sill. Centre: 1888 
Chronicle advertisement. 
Right: Comparison with 
present structure. 1875 

postcard image courtesy 
Arnprior District Museum. 
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Chimney Caps and Pieces 
A variety of styles 

of chimney caps and 
pieces for both 
residences and 
professional buildings 
from Arnprior’s “Marble 
Era” have survived. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Local building sites 
Building sites with Arnprior Marble elements are mapped below. Other existing Arnprior business 

and residential buildings may also have marble thresholds, sills and lintels. Much of Arnprior’s first  
village hall may now form the base of the Arnprior town hall. 

 
 
 

Selected buildings with 
“Arnprior Marble” features 
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Architectural use of Arnprior Marble – The First Parliament Buildings and University College 
Centre Block Entrance  “The main entrance is 
through the principal tower, the spacious arches 
of which admit of a carriage way under them. 
The piers which support the tower are 
ornamented with pillars of polished Arnprior 
marble. Passing through it we enter a large hall, 
paved with tiles, and also surrounded with 
marble pillars….” (Handbook to the parliamentary 
and departmental buildings. Canada, by Joseph 
Bureau 1867. page 15). To limit costs Mr. John 
Morris, architect and “Clerk of the Works” in the 1859 
Department of Public Works, sought local materials 
to be used in the construction of the first Parliament 
and Departmental Buildings. Morris visited stone 
works in many areas surrounding Ottawa. For 

Arnprior, the account in Exhibit No. 23, Appendix page 154, from Report of the Commission 
Appointed to Inquire into Matters Connected with the Public Buildings at Ottawa 1863 includes: 
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Mr. Morris apparently requested the estimate, dated 1859, submitted by William Knowles as 
Exhibit No. 20, Appendix page 153, from Report of the Commission Appointed to Inquire into Matters 
Connected with the Public Buildings at Ottawa, 1863. 
House of Commons 
   As constructed, clusters of five, 4-1/2 inch diameter columns of the “dark Arnprior” marble were 
used to support the arches on top of lighter coloured marble pillars from quarries near Portage du 
Fort, Quebec.  

  

Pre-1916 House of Commons. The clustered 
columns (coloured) supporting the arches 

are polished “dark Arnprior” marble.  
The Arnprior marble columns are in turn 
supported by lighter marble pillars from 
quarries near Portage du Fort. Poorly 

imaged fold banding is just visible in both 
marbles.  

 
Images are from Library and Archives 

Canada. 
See also: Young, C.A., 1995, pages 58, 59, 

96, 97. 
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Senate Chamber 
“On the right of the Main entrance is the Senate Chamber. The Room measures 82 by 45 

feet, the ceiling being over 50 feet high, and formed of fine open work. The skylights above 
this intermediate ceiling, with the stained glass windows at the sides, throw a plentiful soft 
light over the whole place. The room is surrounded by large piers of a light greyish marble 
from Portage du Fort, surmounted just above the galleries by clusters of small pillars of the 
dark Arnprior; the arches supported by these pillars being again of the light coloured 
marble. The galleries can accommodate about 1,000 persons.” (Illustrated Guide to the 
House of Commons and Senate, page 117.) 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Clusters of 
polished Arnprior 
Marble columns 

support the arches 
in the pre-1916 

Senate Chamber. 
Note banding in 
support pillars of 

lighter marble from 
near Portage du 

Fort. 
 

Images from the 
Glenbow Museum 

Archives and 
Library and 

Archives Canada 
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Arnprior Marble - Parliament Buildings Material Invoice 
Schedule G from the Report of the Commission Appointed to Inquire into Matters Connected with 

the Public Buildings at Ottawa, 1863, identifies costs and problems associated with providing 
Arnprior Marble columns to the first parliament buildings. 
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Other documents testifying to the use of Arnprior Marble in the first houses of parliament include: 
 

• Young, C.A. 1995. Glory of Ottawa: Canada’s First Parliament Buildings by Carolyn 
A. Young, McGill-Queen’s University Press 1995 ISBN 0-7735-1227-6, pages 96, 
97. 

Caption to Figure 58 in Young, 1995: “The House of Commons in the Centre Block, Ottawa, 
after 1872. This room originally housed the Legislative Assembly. The light-coloured marble of 
the piers came from Portage du Fort on the Ottawa River; the darker marble of the clustered 
columns was from Arnprior, (NA, PA8361)” 

Text from Young, 1995, page 96:  “The use of slender Arnprior marble columns (only 41/2 
inches in diameter), banded together in clusters of five to support the gallery arcades in the 
Legislative and Council chambers“.  

 
• Handbook to the parliamentary and departmental buildings. Canada, by Joseph 

Bureau 1867. page 15, http://www.archive.org/details/cihm_23443 
 

Referring to the “Parliamentary Buildings”, i.e. the East and West Blocks - “The ceiling of the 
passages and of many of the rooms of the Parliament Buildings are made of pine wood, 
varnished, which being wrought into ornamental cornices and panels produce a rich and very 
fine appearance. The same material has been used for the doors. The fillings around the grates 
and mantle-pieces are of polished Arnprior marble; it is greyish blue marble of very fine grain, 
and capable of being polished to a high degree.” 

 
• The House That History Built by R.A.J. Phillips – See: Canadian Parliamentary 

Review – Article at: http://www.revparl.ca/english/issue.asp?param=100&art=442 
 
“So it is in the office of Sir John A. Macdonald. The fine blue-grey Arnprior marble 
fireplace has reappeared from the cream-coloured latex paint with which one of the last 
occupants had it coated.” 

 
The descriptions indicate that “light greyish marble” was also supplied to the first parliament 

buildings from the area of Portage du Fort. Both Arnprior and the lighter marbles are from different 
parts of the same northeast trending marble-rich geological terrane underlying central Ontario and 
western Quebec. The local deformation at Arnprior and related development of minerals such as 
tremolite and graphite in “Arnprior Marble” contribute to the “dark” or “blue-grey” designation.  
  

http://www.revparl.ca/english/issue.asp?param=100&art=442
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Arnprior Marble in the Principal Hall, University College, University of Toronto 
Immediately before seeking stone for the first Parliamentary and Departmental buildings in 1859, 

John Morris was Clerk of the Works during construction of University College at the University of 
Toronto. The McLachlin Family Papers (MU6765 Arnprior McNab / Braeside Archives) include a 
letter from Morris to Dan McLachlin seeking a block of Arnprior Marble “not less than 4 feet long, 14  

 
inches wide, and 14 inches thick” for pillars in the “Principal Hall” of the “New University Building”. 
Inquiries to the University of Toronto and pages 74, 104 and 158 in the account of University College 
and its history by D. Richardson (1990) confirm that John Morris was Clerk of the Works during 
construction phases of University College but do not verify that Arnprior Marble was indeed used as 
described in the letter to Dan McLachlin. The fire of February 14, 1890 in University College and the 
following reconstruction may have - like the 1916 fire in the Parliament Buildings - eliminated the 
marble elements requested by John Morris. 
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Significance – Industry size -  How famous was the Arnprior Marble industry? 
 
Provincial Awards 

Marble merchants used demonstrations of Arnprior Marble products at exhibitions as a major 
form of advertising. Documents indicate marble from Arnprior quarries was recognized locally, 
Provincially, Federally and received international awards. 

The Arnprior industry expanded significantly after the awards to Wm Knowles at the 1859 
provincial exhibition in Kingston. The following mention and awards are documented in the 
Transactions of the Agricultural Association and Board of Agriculture of Upper Canada, pages 249, 
258, 277, 284 in: The Canadian Agriculturist, and Journal of the Board of Agriculture of Upper 
Canada, Volume 11, September 1859. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These awards, the order for the Egan monument, the exhibit for the 1860 visit of the Prince of 
Wales and the visit of John Morris to inspect the marble operation at Arnprior explains the account of 
Mr. Morris in the Report of the Commission Appointed to Inquire into Matters Connected with the 
Public Buildings at Ottawa, 1863, page 156, noting “ARNPRIOR MARBLE - This marble which has 
obtained such favourable notice at the recent exhibition in Kingston”. The selection of the “dark 
Arnprior” for the first parliament buildings followed. 
 
 
 
 

page 249 

page 258 

page 277 

page 284 
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International Awards 
Awards were also earned by both marble and craftsmen from Arnprior at international exhibitions. 

P.T. Somerville won a bronze medal (Sessional paper, Legislature of the Province of Ontario, Vol.3) 
award for his submission of Arnprior Marble to the 1876 Philadelphia International Exhibition. 

 
 
 
 

The 1876 Award at the United States Centennial Exhibition was used in the Somerville 
advertisement from the February 16, 1877 Arnprior Review and South Renfrew Chronicle. 

 
  

Excerpt from page 97 in Reports on the Philadelphia International Exhibition of 1876, Vol. II, 
presented to both British houses of Parliament, printed by George E. Eyre and William 

Spottiswoode, London, England, 1877. 

Newspaper advertisement and image of the type of 
bronze medal awarded to P.T. Somerville for his 

monument at the 1876 USA Centennial Exhibition, 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. (medal diameter 68 

mm), courtesy Arnprior District Museum 
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The Dominion Annual Register and Review for the Twelfth Year of the Canadian Union 1878, 
published by Dawson Brothers, Montreal, 1879, printed a list of Canadian awards at the Paris 
exhibition in the section “Journal of Remarkable Occurrences”, page 247. The partial page identifies 
T. Somerville (probably T.J. Somerville) as a winner of the silver award at the 1878 Paris Exhibition. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The 1878 Paris silver medals were stamped with the recipient’s name. An image of the silver 
medal awarded to “T. Somerville” for his Arnprior Marble monument has been reconstructed below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

A silver Medal was 
awarded to T. 

Somerville, Arnprior, 
for his monument at 
the Paris exhibition 

of 1878. 

Reconstructed image of the 1878 Paris Exhibition silver 
medal awarded to T. Somerville. Original medal was 

~68mm in diameter. (from eBay images) 



ARNPRIOR MARBLE                                   Update May 14, 2021                                           Dave & Mary Forsyth 

 59 

“Arnprior Marble” – a recognized quality standard 
On January 30, 1872 the Anglican Christ Church 

vestry building committee in Ottawa reported that 
“Christ Church should furnish themselves with a 
building harmonizing with the improvements taking 
place in the architecture of the city” (Hill, P.H., K.C., 
1932, page 54). In 1872, the recently completed 
Parliamentary and Departmental buildings may have 
served as a standard of construction for the new 
cathedral. The similarity between Christ Church 
Cathedral columns and Arnprior Marble columns in 
the first Senate chambers is in keeping with both this 
standard and the 1872 
opinion of Christ Church 
vestry building committee. 
Christchurch columns may 
be of the light marble from 
near Portage du Fort. 
 

In 1875, Pierre Marier & Co., Ottawa, 
used standards of marble quality as: “Italian, 
American and Arnprior Marble”.  

 
An excerpt from the1885 Annual report of 
the Bureau of Industries for the Province of 
Ontario summarizes the international 
reputation of marble from Arnprior.  

Comparison of marble 
columns in Christ 
Church Cathedral, 

Ottawa and the first 
Senate Chambers. 

Arnprior marble as a quality indicator. 
From: www.collectionscanada > Library 

and Archives Canada > Canadian 
Directories: Who Was Where > Ottawa 

Directory, 1875, page 161. 
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Abrupt Demise of the Arnprior Marble Industry 
 

By the late 1870’s the Arnprior industry is the victim of an unfair system of duties on Canadian 
marble. Using terms familiar today, a group in Arnprior authored the following letter in February 1879. 
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A decade later, effects of the duties in Arnprior are still evident in Alex McDonald’s letter of 1890. 
Would US merchants sell marble here for less than at home just to secure market share? 

 
 
 
 
T.J. Somerville advertised his departure in the December 23,1887 Christmas Edition of the 

Arnprior Chronicle. J.G Watson’s departure advertised in the Arnprior Watchman of June 1, 1894 
was described earlier. Although incomplete, the news-
paper data indicate that in the August 22, 1890 Arnprior 
Chronicle there were 3 advertisements by headstone 
merchants and 2 were specifically for Arnprior Marble. In 
1897 there was one and by 1899 there appear to be none. 
By 1909, one tombstone ad was placed by an Ottawa 
merchant in the Arnprior Chronicle. Arnprior’s “Marble Era” 
had effectively ended by 1900. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  

From Alexander MacDonald’s note to the 1890 Report of the Ontario Commission 
upon the Mineral Resources of Ontario and Measures for their Development, pages 

82, 83. The information may be current as of May 16, 1888, perhaps earlier. 

T.J. Somerville’s departure from the 
Arnprior marble business, December 

23,1887 Arnprior Chronicle 

Hugh McEwen’s ad 
of June 25, 1897 
was one of the last 
by Arnprior Marble 
merchants in the 
local papers. 
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Arnprior’s Marble Era Timeframe 
 
Benchmarks, including dated headstones, that 

mark Arnprior’s marble era include: 
 

• Sir William Logan, director, Geological 
Survey of Canada clearly described the 
special character of Arnprior marble in his 
1863 report. 

• A probable Arnprior Marble headstone in the 
Craig Street cemetery, Perth (a, right), has a 
date of death of September 12, 1835. 

• An Arnprior Marble stone with an 1845 date 
of death and the signature “P.T. Somerville, 
Arnprior” (b, far right) rests in the Christ 
Church Anglican Cemetery, 3008 Carp Road. 
Congregation members familiar with the 
Christ Church history suggest the stone is not 
a replacement stone. Christ Church was built 
in 1838 and was spared the great fire of 
1870. 

• Albert Street cemetery headstones signed by 
Spence & Firth and P.T. Somerville are dated 
1854 and 1859 respectively. Other Albert 
Street marble stones with dates of 1851, 
1852, 1855, 1856, 1858 and 1859 support an 
industry well established by the 1850’s. 

•  The estimate for Arnprior marble provided by William Knowles to John Morris for the first 
Parliament Buildings is dated 1859. 

• Awards and a succession of Arnprior marble dealers and sites characterize the industry’s 
peak from the late 1850’s until the 1880’s. 

Headstone dates and newspaper advertisements indicate the Arnprior marble industry had 
largely ended by about 1900. Headstones made from local marble appear unsigned after about 
1890. Letters by an Arnprior group in 1879 and in 1890 by Alex McDonald suggest reasons for the 
industry’s demise. By 1916, the local marble industry was unable to supply reconstruction of the new 
Parliament buildings. 

 The Arnprior Watchman reported J.L. Fraser’s marble works continued until 1919. The lack of 
other evidence for a marble industry at this time may indicate J.L. Fraser’s was mainly a retail outlet. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Arnprior Watchman 
article suggesting J.L. 

Fraser’s marble 
business continued 

until 1919. 

a b 
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Arnprior’s Marble Era history is graphed below. 

Other references to marble at Arnprior may be found in the “PROGRESS REPORT for EXPLOR-
ATIONS AND SURVEYS MADE DURINGTHE YEARS 1875 AND 1876, IN THE COUNTIES OF 
RENFREW, PONTIAC AND OTTAWA …. BY HENRY G.VENNOR” (pages 244, 245, 246, 247, 281 
in: The Geological Survey of Canada “Reports of Exploration and Surveys. 1876 -77.”; “Published by 
Authority of Parliament” in April, 1878 (available at http://books.google.com/). 

For the Bell Park area, Provincial Ontario Ministry of Northern Development and Mines map 53B 
(1944) and mineral occurrence descriptions at http://www.geologyontario.mndmf.gov.on.ca/ include: 
 

Comments: 
27/08/2011 Satterly described the rock as a light- and dark-grey medium-grained banded 

marble striking N75W and dipping 60S. The quarries are described as being 150 feet square and 
6 feet deep and the other described as 120 feet square and from 5-10 feet deep”. 
 

For the existing remnant quarry in Bell Park, this description is accurate today. 
  

Approximate sequence 
of events and periods of 
marble merchants during 
Arnprior’s ‘Marble Era’. 

 

http://books.google.com/
http://www.geologyontario.mndmf.gov.on.ca/
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Heritage Values and Sites 
 

The use of Arnprior Marble in cemeteries from Arnprior to the Pontiac, Ottawa, Kingston, Perth 
and probably beyond, attests to its recognition. “The fine blue-grey Arnprior marble fireplace” …” in 
the office of Sir John A. Macdonald” confirms Arnprior Marble’s national repute. Awards at provincial, 
Philadelphia and Paris exhibitions and as the stone of choice for both structures in the first 
Parliament Buildings and to commemorate a veteran of the War of 1812, also attest to the national 
and international significance of the stone. 

It appears clear that Arnprior buildings including the Galilee Centre, the United Church and 
manse, the Retreat, Scotiabank, Campbell Block, Craig Block, the present municipal building and 
perhaps 224 Harriet Street possess an architectural heritage value beyond just their age. The 
discovery of a marble quoin at Daniel McLachlin’s first Arnprior home is particularly notable. Further 
study may reveal more structures and marble artefacts. Restoration of the Tierney Block entrance 
will be emblematic of Arnprior’s geoheritage. 

The existing island immediately downstream of the hydro weir was the site of the quarry operated 
by William Knowles in 1859. The island’s quarried stone won several awards. The 1859 date on the 
estimate for provision of marble to the first Parliament Buildings suggests the island quarry was the 
source of the polished “dark Arnprior” columns and other interior elements in the first House of 
Commons and Senate chambers. Drill holes attesting to the quarry are evident today and mark the 
site as part of Arnprior’s industrial heritage.  

The 1883 indenture establishes the terms for mining marble by R. McDonald & Son from the 
quarries along the Macnamara Trail today. 

Overgrown but still quite recognizable, remnant quarry sites from Arnprior’s late 19th century 
industrial activities in Bell Park, on the island near the Madawaska weir and along the Macnamara 
Trail are evident today. The sites at Russell and Elgin and near the CPR Bridge have been obscured 
by later development. 

Apparent hand-drilled blocks measuring metres on a side remain in some remnant quarries. All 
may represent sites of potential artefact recovery. 

We suggest the Bell Park and Madawaska island sites represent a significant industrial phase in 
Arnprior’s early history and may warrant designation as municipal heritage sites. 

The marble outcrop extending along about 1 km of the abandoned Canadian Pacific railbed 
offers excellent exposures to learn more about the stone that contributed so much to Arnprior’s and 
Canada’s early history. 
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Questions - Areas for Further Research 
 
Some 18 marble Arnprior merchant signatures in stone and over 20 names have been identified 

from Arnprior’s marble era from the 1840s to about 1900. Since there were more craftsmen than 
quarries, a cooperative system to use the stone from particular quarries must have worked. While 
Knowles, the McDonald and Somerville families are identified as quarry owners, what was the 
relationship between the many craftsmen and the few quarries? 

Although Arnprior Marble headstones carry dates of death after 1890, why do craftsmen’s 
signatures on headstones appear to stop at about 1890? What was the protocol for signing stones? 

The Arnprior Chronicle of August 13, 1909 indicates Robert McDonald bought a quarry from J.S. 
Bellamy after construction of the first Parliament buildings (i.e. after1866-67). Of the various Arnprior 
quarries, which quarry was owned by J.S. Bellamy? 

Was Arnprior Marble used in the construction of the Principal Hall at University College? 
The Illustrated Atlas of Renfrew County, 1881, H. Belden & Co., Toronto, page 52, describes the 

industry as including “two marble-dressing establishments, running 200 saws and employing about 
50 men”, but lists no locations or owners. Given steam and manual technology, we wonder if 50 men 
could run 200 saws. Perhaps it might be more reasonable to have 200 men running 50 saws? Even 
with only 50 workers in the “plants”, given the different classes of workers described in Alexander 
McDonald’s 1890 letter and the work required in quarries, finishing plants, retail outlets and 
transportation, the total marble industry workforce would appear to have reached a hundred or more 
in a community of less than 2000 – perhaps 20% or more of the workforce. With the depressed 
lumber market of the mid 1870’s, the Arnprior marble industry was a stabilizing force in the village. 

 Marble merchant sites changed hands and appear to have moved. Newspaper advertisements 
and Arnprior Land Records (Arnprior & McNab/Braeside Archives) such as the September 4, 1871, 
Arnprior Land Records, pg. 163, Arnprior Br. No. 1, that shows “B&S Patrick McGonigal to Peter 
Taylor Somerville - Lot 48 Hugh St.” and J.G. Watson’s sale notice of 1894 were vital to mapping the 
evolution of the marble industry. T.J. Somerville succeeded William Spence. J. (John) L. Fraser was 
a manager for T.J. Somerville by 1888. J. L. Fraser’s advertisement of 1890 indicates his shop was 
on the north side of Elgin Street “Next to R.S. Drysdale’s” near the present Shoppers Drug store. The 
1888 image shows Fraser’s business was called “Central Marble Works”. His nearly identical 1888 
advertisement indicates “Shop Opposite the Post Office, Elgin Street”. This would have been on the 
south side of Elgin Street opposite the present Shoppers Drug Mart store. The Arnprior Watchman 
note indicates Fraser may have moved into the Galvin Block by 1919. J.L. Fraser and Hugh McEwen 
may have been the last merchants of Arnprior’s ‘Marble Era’. 

The Arnprior Chronicle article of April 30, 1926, page 3 (from 1885 or 1888) and J.G. Watson’s 
advertisement in the Arnprior Watchman of June 1, 1894, page 4, suggest a marble shop was 
located on Elgin Street and at least part of the Hugh Street property had been transformed into 
“tenements” by 1894. The 1888 advertisement by R. McDonald & Son indicates they also had a 
“Workshop and Show Room on South Hugh Street near the C.P.R. station”. Hugh Street south of the 
present Arnprior Town Hall and both sides of Elgin Street near the present Shoppers Drug store 
were established locations for final marble preparation and retail shops. Exact John street locations 
occupied by Spence & Co. and Watson and Danlin are less resolved due to the absence of street 
addresses at the time.  

P.T. Somerville’s advertisement from 1873-1874 indicates a site on Hugh Street near the 
Brockville and Ottawa Railway Station - before the Canadian Pacific Railway built a new station to 
the east closer to John Street. We suggest the illustration of the P.T. Somerville store and shop in 
Belden’s 1881 Atlas for Renfrew County is based on Peter Taylor Somerville’s establishment at 48 
Hugh Street indicated on the 1865 Plan of the McGonigal Estate (Arnprior & McNab Braeside 
Archives; photograph Arnprior District Museum). 



ARNPRIOR MARBLE                                   Update May 14, 2021                                           Dave & Mary Forsyth 

 66 

The advertisement by John G. Watson in the Arnprior Watchman of 1895 (Arnprior & McNab 
Braeside Archives) also indicates a marble (shop?) opposite the Post Office on Elgin Street. The 
listing and advertisement by Spence & Co on pages 116 and 120 of Fuller’s Counties of Leeds, 
Grenville, Lanark and Renfrew Directory in 1866 and 1867 indicates a shop on John Street. Were 
other marble merchant shops or ‘plants’ located on John and Elgin streets and where? 

From Alexander McDonald’s account and the 1885 Annual report of the Bureau of Industries for 
the Province of Ontario, the “mill for the manufacture of the stone” on “the south side of the 
Madawaska … owned by Farquharson, McLaughlin and Hartney” (or “Farquhar, McLachlin, Hartney 
& Co.”) operated in ~ 1869-1874. The Arnprior Review and South Renfrew Chronicle indicates there 
was a firm run by Wright & Farquharson in October of 1876. The 1878 Almonte Gazette articles 
suggest Claude McLachlin had an interest in the marble business. The Arnprior Review and South 
Renfrew Chronicle, October 6, 1876, page 3, indicates there was a firm called the East End Marble 
Works. Where was the “East End Marble Works? How many firms existed and what was their 
relationship to one another and the quarries? 

The 1859 estimate by William Knowles indicates “delivery at Ottawa” will be cheaper “during the 
sleighing season”. Advantage was clearly taken to transport stone by horse and sleigh on ice. The 
Brockville and Ottawa railway reached Arnprior in 1864. Arnprior marble headstones have been 
found in cemeteries along routes to Ottawa, along the highway 29 -15 corridor from Arnprior to 
Kingston and at Perth. While earlier shipment of marble products may have used the Ottawa River 
(both summer and winter?), how significant was the railway in aiding the marble industry after 1864? 

Arnprior’s ‘Marble Era’ appears to have arisen during the Buchanan brother’s timber operations 
and maintained a village workforce that grew with the lumber industry after about 1860. Arnprior’s 
fortunes appear to have waned between the demise of the Buchanan brothers’ operations in the 
early 1830s and the rise of Daniel McLachlin’s lumber mills after 1865.The Arnprior marble industry 
would have been a stabilizing influence. The quarries at Bell Park and along the Macnamara Trail lie 
at the western and eastern limits of the McLachlin Brothers’ lumber yards. Was there any interaction 
between the industries? 

While resources for the lumber industry became effectively exhausted, the marble industry did not 
run out of stone. The reasons for the unfair duties alleged in the Arnprior marble industry letter of 
1879 and Alexander McDonald’s letter of 1890 are the subject of another study. 

Arnprior once had four bridges, all built before 1900. Was marble used in the construction of 
bridge abutments? 

The similar deformation fabric and colour of most of the marble in The Retreat, Grace-St. 
Andrew’s United Church manse, the Scotiabank building and the Campbell Block suggest the stone 
was locally known as ‘Ottawa Valley marble’ and may be from quarries at Bell Park or on the 
Macnamara Trail. Much of the stone in Daniel McLachlin’s house appears closer to the “Arnprior 
Marble” or the “dark Arnprior” and may have come from quarries at the Island in the Madawaska, 
Russell and Elgin or near the CPR Bridge. Many of the marble quoins in the Craig Block, the base of 
the present Town Hall and 224 Harriet Street are ‘dark Arnprior’ marble. 

Local marble may also be found in many other residences and professional buildings in Arnprior. 
Simply cut marble blocks for door thresholds, window sills and random foundation stones may have 
been used opportunistically as available to local builders both during and perhaps from remnant 
stone after Arnprior’s “Marble Era” had ended. 

 A study of the limestone quarries for buildings in Arnprior remains to be done. Differences in 
limestone suggest some wall stone in the McLachlin House and the Campbell Block came from 
different strata. Wall stone of the Scotiabank, Craig Block, Grace-St. Andrew’s United Church, United 
Church Manse and base of the present town hall appears to be derived from a different quarry or 
beds. Family records indicate stone in The Retreat was from a nearby quarry just north of 
Madawaska Blvd. 
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The loss of buildings with Arnprior marble such as the Tierney Block at the corner of Madawaska 
and John, the first Village Hall and potentially the McLachlin grist mill at the Madawaska Bridge is 
unfortunate. That most of Arnprior’s first Village Hall stone has been recycled and remains in the 
residence at 224 Harriet, the base of the present municipal building and perhaps a few local flower 
beds appears possible. With the discovery of the marble entrance components to the Tierney block 
at a stone mason’s ‘bone yard’, the Arnprior Town Council repatriated the entrance for future 
restoration. 
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Appendix: Marble in Arnprior – today 
 

Spectacular views of the fold patterns and intrusive relationships between marble and both black 
mafic dykes and rusty granitic bodies are displayed along the defunct Canadian Pacific Railway line. 
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Impressive examples of mafic and quartzite dykes intruding marble and the effects of stress 
locked into the rock mass about 1 billion years ago are evident in the railway cut exposures. 

 
Fold patterns adjacent to the contacts between granite and marble add to the complex geological 

history beneath Arnprior. 
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Few communities can define their geological heritage like Arnprior can.
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